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BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS
GOVERNORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The governors present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditot’s report of the charitable
company for the ysar ended 31 August 2021. The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustess' repart, and
a directors' report under company law.

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policles set out in note 1 to the accounts and
comply with the charltable company's Memorandum and Ardicles of Associstion, the Companies Act 2008, the
Statement of Recommended Practice 2015, “Accounting and Reporting by Charlties”, and the Academies' Accounts
Dlrection 2020/2021 issued by the ESFA.

The principal activity of the company s the operation of a state-funded Academy; Blackfen Schoaf for Girls, providing
a state education for students aged 11 to 19. It has a student capacity of 1500 and had a roll of 1457 in the school
census on January 2021. This Is higher than previous years.

Structure, governance and management

Constitution

The academy trust was Incorporated as a company on 02 March 2012 and the predecessor school converted to
academy status on 01 April 2012. The academy trust Is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The
charitable company’s memorandum and articles of assoclatlon are the primary govemlng documents of the academy
trust. -

The governors of Blackfen Schoal for Girls are also the trustees and directors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law and they are governors of the Academy.

The charitable company is known as Blackfen Schaal for Girls.

Detalls of the governors who servaed during the year are included in the Reference and Administrative Detalls on page
1,

Members' liabllity

Each member of the charitable company undsrtakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event
of it belng wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as
may be requlired, not exceeding £10, for the debts and fiabllities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Governors' indemnities

No Governors’ indemnities have been given.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of goverpors

In accordance with the articles, the governors of the charltable company are the trustees and directors of the charitable
company. They are appointed as follows;

a) up to twelva governors appaintad by the members;

b) up to three staff governors elected by the staff;

¢) up to five parent governors elected by parents,

d) one LA governor appointed by LA;

¢) the Head Teacher is an ex-officlo governor;

f) In particular clrcumstances, as detailed In the Articles of Association the Secretary of State may appolnt governors
to join tha govemning body.

In respect of those appointed by the members, (a), above) when a vacancy arises, the governors seek to make an
appointment that would maximise the relevant skills and experience on the board as a whole.

' e
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Policies apd proceduras adopted for the induction and training of governors

The training and induction provided for new governors will depend on their existing experlence. Where necessary,
induction will provide training In charity, educational, legal and financial matters. All governors are provided with the
information needed (including policies, minutes, budgets, etc.) to undertake their role as governors

Organisational structure

The board of governors, the majority of whom are non-executive, comprises those persons appointed under the
Articles of Assoclation. The board meets at least four times a year and has four committees which deal with policies,
developments and assessment of different areas of the running of the Academy. The committees are as follows:

Finance, Audit and Risk Committee
Curriculum Cammittee

Staffing Committee

Premises Committee

Pay & Performance Committes

All of the committeas are formally constituted with terms of reference and comprise appropriately qualified and
experlenced members. Governors delegate specific responsibiiities to its committees, the activities of which are
reported to and discussed at full Governing Body Mestings. The committees meet each term. All policies and budget
declisions are agreed by the Governing Body.

The Head Teacher is the Accounting Officer, he is @ member of the Financs, Audit and Risk committee, Curriculum,
Staffing and Premises committees. The Business Manager is the Principal Finance Officer.

The day to day management of the Academy Is undertaken by the Head Teacher, supported by the Leadership Team.
Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The leadership team (LT) are the key management personnel of the trust. Trustees are also senior leaders although
they receive no pay or other remuneration In respect of their role as trustees. Where staff trustees are in place, they
receive remuneration for thelr role as staff and their pay Is determined in the same way as applicable to all other staff.
Further details of remuneration palid to staff who are trustees Is set out within the notes to the accounts.

The pay of the Head Teacher Is set annually by the group responsible for setting the Head Teacher's pay. An external
adviser Is used to evaluate the performance of tha Head Teacher and to advise the Govarnars panel accordingly. The
final pay decision recommendation is made to the full Governing bady for ratification. Pay ls set having regards to
performance against objectives set the previous year. Pay of other LT membaers is also set by the Pay and
Performance Commiltee again having regard to performance against previously agreed objectives and any
recommendations made by the Head Teacher.
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Trade Union Facility Time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union Full-time equivalent employee number
officials during the relsvant perlod
2 1.8

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of Employees
0% -

1% - 50% 2.71

51% - 99% -

100% -

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total Cost of facllity time £1234
Total Pay bill £78,379

Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facllity time 2.24%

Paid trade unfon activities

Time spent on pald trade unfon activitles as a 0.33%
percentage of total pald facllity time hours, i

Related Parties and other Cpnnecteg Charities and Organisations

Blackfen School for Glrls Is a single Academy and is not part of a federation.

The Academy formed an Umbrelia Trust - The Penhill Academies Trust - with 2 partner schools. These schools were
Sherwood Park (primary school), Hurstmere (boys 7-11 School). Chislehurst and Sldcup Grammar School (mixed
gender 7 -13) and Bexley Grammar School (mixed gender 7 -13) joined later to bring the number of partner schools
to 4. The alm is to promote school Improvement across the five schools for all young peopla In the local community.
The vision Is for five schools working together for the benefit of the local community. A key aspect of this collaborative
working Is 1o share some costs, hence be more efficlent, In terms of potential staffing and purchasing power. The
Head Teachers meet formally once a term and the Penhill Trust Board meets formally once a term. Minutes from
these meetings are discussed at the Blackfen school governing body meetings.

Objectives and activities

Objscts and alms

The principal object of the company Is the advancemsnt of education In the United Kingdom. it achieves this object
principally through the operation of Blackfen School for Girls, the alm belng to provide the highest possible standard
of education and pastoral cars, maximising the life-chances of its students,
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Objectives, strategies and activities

The main oblectives during the last year were to:

Ensure that effective leadership & management at all levels improves student progress;
Improve the quality of teaching, learning and assessment;

Develop conditions for leaming to outstanding;

Ralse standards and accelerate progress; and

Improve18-19 provision.

Public benefit

In setting the objectives and planning the assoclated activities, governors have given careful conslderation to the
Charlty Commission's general guidance on public benefit,

Strategic report

Achievemants and performance

It has been another challenging year for the company with the decislon to cancel examinations for the second year
running being made in January. Students have, instead, been awarded with teacher assessed grades for
examinations this year. The main focus of the strategic plan was to continue to raise attainment for all groups of
students but particularly to Improve aitainment for the higher prior attaining students, students with SEND and for
the disadvantaged. In September 2020, various measures were put [n place to mitigate the risk of transmission of
Covid-19. These were successful to a certain extent. However, by late October transmission rates in the local
community were high and the second hatf term through November and December was severely disrupted. The last
Ofsted Inspection was in December 2019.

Dus to the pandemic residential trips were cancelled.

We have continued to invest in improving the bulldings in the schaol and in improving the IT infrastructure.
The new teaching block works were completed and all temporary teaching accommodation was removed from the
site.

The school Is Inclusive with highly trained teachers In the resource provision, specialising in speech and language
difficulties as well as a speech and language therapist.

Key financial performance indicators

1) Staffing costs to be within +/- 2% of budget allocations:

For the period ending 31st August 2021 teaching costs were at 99.268% of budget allocation and overall staffing costs
were at 99.97% of total budget aliocation. The ovarall employee cost are at 99.32% of budget and this is due to
unforeseen staff sickness.

Staffing costs are the Academy's main expense and the good value and commitmant of our staff are reflected in our
examination resuits.

2) Learning resources expenditure to be within +/- 5% of budget allocation:

For the period ending 31st August 2020 learning resources expenditure was at 71.01% of budget allocation, this is
lower than normal due to COVID-19 reducing the spend on learning resources.

In all of our expenditure the Business Manager, Finance Manager, Governors and Leadership Team will obtain the
best value and will investigats cholces and options available.
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Other key performance Indicators

Year 11 headline figures

Attainment/Progress 8 Summary
Measure %
| Average Total Attainment 8
&verage Attainment 8 Grade
Average KS2 Prior Attainment
Average Estimated A8
Average Total Progress 8
P8 Upper Confidence Interval 0.5
P8 Lower Confidence interval 0.2
Pupils Included (Progress 8 Coverage) 199 95.7
Puplls with Adjusted Progress 8 Scores 0.5
Average Total Progress 8 (Unadjusted) ?
Positive Progress 8
Measure Total %
Pupils achieving a Positive Overall Progress 8 score 128 64.3
Puplls achieving a Positive Progress 8 score in ALL 4
baskets ' 55 27.6
Puplls achieving a Positive Progress 8 score In English 120 60.3
Puplils achleving a Positive Progress 8 score in Maths 91 45.7
Puplls achleving a Positive Progress 8 score in EBacc 99 49.7
Puplls achleving a Positive Progress 8 score in Open 157 78.9
Basics 9-7
Measure Total %
Students Achieving 9-7 in English and Maths 16 7.7
Students Achieving 9-7 in English 49 23.6
Students Achieving 9-7 in Maths 28 13.5
Students NOT Achieving 9-7 in English or Maths 147 70.7
Students Achleving 9-7 in English but NOT Maths 33 15.9
Students Achleving 9-7 in Maths but NOT English 12 5.8
Baslcs 9-5
"Measure Total %
Students Achleving 9-5 In English and Maths 90 43.3
Students Achieving 9-5 In English 151 72.6
Students Achieving 9-5 in Maths 94 45.2
Students NOT Achleving 9-5 in English or Maths 53 25.5
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Students Achleving 9-5 in English but NOT Maths 61 29.3
Students Achieving 9-5 in Maths but NOT English 4 1.9
Basics 9-4
Measure Total %
Students Achleving 9-4 In English and Maths 147 70.7
Students Achieving 9-4 in English 188 90.4
Students Achleving 9-4 in Maths 147 70.7
Students NOT Achieving 9-4 In English or Maths 20 9.6
Students Achieving 9-4 in English but NOT Maths 41 19.7
Students Achieving 9-4 In Maths but NOT English 0 0
Pupils achleving a Positive Progress 8 score in Maths 91 45.7
Puplls achieving a Positive Progress 8 score in EBacc 99 49.7
Puplls achleving a Posltive Progress 8 score in Open 157 78.9
Basics 9-7
Measure Total %
Students Achleving 9-7 in English and Maths 16 7.7
Students Achleving 9-7 in English 49 23.6
Students Achleving 9-7 in Maths 28 13.5
Students NOT Achieving 9-7 in English or Maths 147 70.7
Students Achieving 9-7 |n English but NOT Maths 33 15.9
Students Achieving 9-7 in Maths but NOT English 12 5.8
Basics 9-5
Measure Total ' %
Students Achleving 9-5 in English and Maths 90 43.3
Students Achleving 9-5 In English 151 726
Students Achieving 9-5 in Maths 94 45.2
Students NOT Achieving 9-5 in English or Maths 53 25.5
Students Achleving 9-5 In English but NOT Maths 61 29.3
Students Achieving 8-5 In Maths but NOT English 4 1.9
Baslcs 9-4
Measure Total %
Students Achieving 9-4 in English and Maths 147 70.7
Students Achleving 9-4 in English 188 90.4
Students Achleving 9-4 In Maths 147 70.7
Students NOT Achleving 9-4 in English or Maths 20 9.6
' Students Achieving 9-4 In English but NOT Maths 41 19.7
Students Achieving 9-4 in Maths but NOT English 0 0
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6th Form Headline flgures

Measure " Value %
Cahort 131 100
L3 Overall

Measure Value %
Students Included in L3 Overall Cohort 131 100
L3 Overall Average Polnts per Entry 35.04 -
L3 Overall Average Grade 8- -
L3 Overall Total Entries 375.7 -
L3 Overall Average Points per Pupil 100,48 -
Students inciuded in L3 Overall Value Added 131 100
L3 Overall VA 0.57 -
L3 Overall VA"Upper Confiderice Limit 0.66 -
L3 Overall VA Lower Confidence Limit 0.47 -
A Level

Measure " Value %
Students Included in A Level Cohort 92 70.2
A Level Average Polnts per Entry 35.37 -
A Level Average Grade B- -
A Level Total Entries 201 -
A Level Average Points per Pupli 77.28 -
Students included in A Level Value Added 92 70.2
A Level VA 0.36 -
A Level VA Upper Confidence Limit 0.51 -
A Level VA Lower Confidence Limit 0.22 -
Best 3 A Levels

Measure Value %
Students included in Best 3 A Levels 54 41.2
Best 3 A Levels Average Total Points 100.56 .-
Best 3 A Levels Average Points 33.52 -
Best 3 A Levels Average Grade C+ -
AAB

Measure Value %
Students Included in AAB 54 41.2
.Students Achieving AAB Including 2 Facilitating B .5 9.3
Students Achleving AAB Including 3 Facllitating 1 1.9
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Academic
I\/féésll re Value %
Students inciuded in Academic Cohort 92 70.2
Academic Average Points per Entry 35.43 -
Academic Average Grade B- -
Academic Total Entries 203.7 -
Academic Average Points per Pupil 78.46 -
Students included in Academic Value Added 92 70.2
Academic VA 0.36 -
Academic VA Upper Confidence Limit 0.5 -
Academic VA Lower Confidence Limit 0.22 -

Measure Total “Rercent

Cohort 123

A Levsl Cohort 95

Academic Cohort 95

Vocational Cohort 73

Applied General Cohort 73

Tech Level Cohort 0

Overall Total Pergent

Qvaerall APS Per Pupll 104.11

-Qverall APS Per Entry 34.05

Qverall Avg Grade Per Entry C+

Overall VA -

Overall VA Lower Confidence Limit -

Overall VA Upper Confidence Limit -

Students Included in Overall Value Added -

Qverall Completion and Attainment -

Students Included in Overall Completion & Attainment 0

Overall Students Retained 122 99.2

Students Included In Overall Retention 123

Overall 1+ A* B (or equivalent) 75 81

Overall 2+ A*- B (or equivalent) 38 30.9

Overall 3+ A*- B (or equivalent) 18 14.6

Overall 1+ A*- C (or equivalent) 115 93.5

Overall 2+ A™- C (or equivalent) 91 74

Overall 3+ A*- C (or equivalent) 54 43.9

-10-
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Overall 1+ A*- E (or equivalent) 123 100

Overall 2+ A*- E (or equivalent) 121 98.4
Measure : Total Percent
Going concern

After making appropriate engulrles, the board of governors has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues
to adopt the going concem basis In preparing the financial statements.

Financial review

We receive our income from a number of different sources. The majority of our income comes from central government
via the Education and Skills Funding Agency who provide us with grant, based largely on aur student numbers to
cover our staffing and other general running costs (General Annual Grant - GAG). The ESFA may provide us with
additional grants, which are earmarked for spscific purposes (such as Puplil Premium, which must be used to raise
the attalnment of disadvantaged puplis). These appear in the accounts as DfE/ESFA grants. Where we recslve grant
or other funding from the Local Authority (such as where we undertake responsibllities on thelr behalf in respect of
our students)_this appears In the accounts as other government grants. Such Income is collectively referred to as
"Restricted Funds".

Other income s recsived from parents (for example as contributions to trip or other costs) and from third parties (for
example from our bank for interest on our account balances or from others who are charged for thelr use of our
facilities). Such other income may be restricted or unrestricted, depending on whether it comes to us with conditions
as to its usa or whether It is available for spending at the discretion of the trustees.

We hold funds in two broad categories, funds which are available for spanding and other funds which are not available
for spending.

Spendable funds are in turn sub-categorised between those which are available for spending at the discretion of
trustees ("Unrestricted Funds") and those which are subject to condition or restriction, ("Restricted Funds”),

Funds not avallabie for spending include the book value of fixed assats such as land, buildings and equipment. These
have a value and are thersfore Included as assets In the accounts but clearly, we cannot spend this value. In common
with all academles and Local Authorities, our share of the Local Government Pension Scheme deficit must also be
teflected in our accounts and as this Is not a conventional iiability, It does not need to be deducted from spendable
funds. We meet our obligations In respect of the LGPS by paying over pension contributions due as calculated by the
scheme's actuaries,

-1-
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The following balances were held at 31 August:

Fund Category 2021 2020
£000 £000

GAG Restricted General Funds 108 138
Other DfE/ESFA Grants Restricted General Funds 164 -
Other Grants and Income Restricted General Funds 60 55
Sub-total General Restricted Funds 332 193

Unspent Capital Grants Restricted Fixed Asset Fund 15 766
Other income Unrestricted General Fund 145 119
Sub-Total Spendable Funds 492 1,078

. Net Baok Value of Fixed Assets Restricted Fixed Asset Fund 46,047 20,574
Salix Energy Loans Restricted Fixed Asset Fund (20) (11)
Share of LGPS Deficit Restricted Pension Reserve (3,125) (2,938)
Total All Funds 43,394 18,703

During the year under review, there was an Increase of £193k (2020: increase of £107k) on general restricted funds,
an increase of £26k (2020: Increase of £43k) on unrestricted funds and after LGPS valuation adjustments,
depreclation and capltal income and expenditure, an overall Increase of £24,891k (2020: decrease of £483k). Note
that the overall increasse Includes the effect of ravajuation of land and buildings which increased the value of the fixed
asset fund by £25,348k.

Reservas policy

The principal policy on reserves Is that accumulation of unspent GAG balances should not breach any limits thereon
set out In the Funding agreement. The level of reserves should never be In deficit.

Each year the Governors review the resource requirements and grant and other income that Is forecast for the coming
year and an annual budget Is formulated and approved.

Investment policy and powers

There are no investments held beyond cash deposits retained with the major UK clearing banks. Speculative
investments are not permitted.

Principal risks and uncertaipties

The governors have assessed the major risks to which the Academy is exposed, in particular those relating to
academic performance/finances/child welfare/admissions. The governors have implemented a numbar of systems to
assess risks that the Academy faces, and have developed policles and procedures to mitigate those risks. Where
significant financlal risk still remains they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover. The Academy has an
effective system of intemal financlal controls and this is explained in more detall In the Governanca Statement,

The principal financlal risk faced by the company is that ongoing pressure on funding results in a risk that deficits may
be experienced. The budgeting and reporting process, including scrutiny by the governors of actual financlal
performance, mitigates the risk.

As the nature of the financial instruments dealt with by the company Is relatively simple (bank balances, debtors and
“trade” creditors), governors conslder the assoclated risk In this area lo be minimal, .
The risk resulting from the company's share of the LGPS deficit Is managed by following the advice of the scheme's
actuaries, speclfically as regards the level of contributions payable, ensuring that annual budgets are drawn up to
reflect the actuary's advice,

-12-
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Most of the company's Income Is obtalned from the DfE (via the Education and Skills Funding Agency) in the form of
recurrent grants, the use of which Is rastricted to particular purposes. The grants recelved from the DfE during the
year ended 31 August 2021 and the assoclated expenditure are shown as restricted funds In the statement of financlal

activities.

Our fundraising practices

The trust and Individual academies within it organise fundraising events and appeals and co-ordinate the actlvities of
our supporters both In the academies and in the wider community on bshalf of the trust,

The trust does not use professlonal fundraisers or involve commarclal participators.

There have been no complaints about fundralsing activity this year.

The trust complies with the Fundraising Regulator's Cade of Fundraising Practice.

All fundralsing Is undertaken by the trust in @ manner that seeks to ensure that it is not unreasonably Intrusive or
persistent. Contact Is made through email, academy newsletters, our websites and via students. All fundralsing
material contains clear Instructions on how a person can be removed from mailing lists.

.

Plans for future periods

PRIORITY 1: Quality of Education
2020/21 vislon: Every teacher - a leader of learning; every leader - a teacher of leaming

ObJectives

Actions, including CPD

Intent 1.1 Currlculum | Intent 1.1.1
ambition: knowledge, | KS3/KS4: Prepare RSE curriculum and review staffing
skills & cultural
capltal Intent 1.1.2
KS3/KS4: Review Alternative Provision curriculum and staffing in ‘Jigsaw' and ‘Phoenix’.
Intent 1.1.3
KS4/KS5: Review curriculum structures and lesson design for sfudents with high prior attainment
(HPA).
Intent 1.1.4
KS5: Explore additional Leval 3 courses: Finance / Physics / MFL
Intent 1.1.5 :
Schemes of Learning 2020 facus: units of work In Year 10 and Year 12.
Intent 1.1.6 .
Review rationale and management of Challenge Days with regard to PSHCE curriculum
intent 1.1.7
Introduce PRIDE attitudes and learning In Year 6/7 transition perlod to underpin ‘flying start’ as a key
driver of academic success in Year 7.
Intent 1.1.8
Embed DICE programme for KS3 — KS6 to Include cultural capital experiences through enjoyment,
challenge, resliience and scholarship.
Intent 1.1.9
Use IT to deslgn at-a-glance index of prior learning across the curriculum: Stage 1 - Construction of
hyperlinked fearning hub
Intent 1.2 Intent 1.2.1 +1,2.2 . i
Coherence of Introduce teaching staff to principles of sequential planning In.Schemes of Learning and lesson
planning & design.
sequencing

Intent 1.2.3

AT T e AGkeeawas oo B e - w
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Continue to make good progress towards achieving Gatsby benchmarks

Intent 1.2.4
Pilot a strategic approach to managing set-maves in Key Stage 3

Intent 1.3 intent 1.3.1

Meeting the needs of

SEND pupils Review Teaching and Leaming Strategies In the context of the needs of all cur cohort
Intent 1.4 Intent 1.4.1

Breadth of curriculum
in K83 & EBacc

Continue to review KS3 curriculum offar:

Intent 1.4.2
Develop a stepped approach towards meeting the DfE EBacc ambition

Intent 1.4.3 :
Develop and esmbed MFL Subject leadership and Level 3 curdculum.

Intent 1.6
Teachers' 'subject
expertise

Intent 1.5.1
Review whols-school CPD structure & model in light of curriculum planning, second-sublect teaching
and workload Implications.

Intent 1.6.2 + 1.5.3

Introduce teaching staff to principles of sequential planning In Schemes of Learning and lasson
deslign.

Intent 1.5.4
Review new coaching lesson observation model to improve teaching and learning on a termly basis.

intent 1.5.5
Develop middle leadership of T&L: Appliad and regular use of professional and academlc reading by
FL/SL to support Faculty and Subject development.

Intent 1.5.6
Research and introduce principles behind review of school-day structures: CPD / Currlculum
planning / Management of teacher workload.

Intent 1.5.7
Ensure further subject specific targeted CPD for subject teachers whers there Is a cause for concem
about examination outcomes

1.6 Adaptive teaching
(checking for
understanding)

Intent 1.6.1 :
Develop strateglc plan for delivering professional tralning on ‘Adaptive teaching’ linked to 2,1.1

1.7 Teaching to
remember iong term
with fluency

Intent 1.7.1

Embed techniques for memorisation of learning:
1) Frequent low-stakes testing

2) Frequent 'memaorisation’ homework.

1.8 Teaching
environment &

Intent 1.8.1
Refresh the use of ICT as a Isarning tool across the curriculum: Assess feasibility of extending use of

resources ‘Microsoft Teams' in 2020 - 2021

1.9 Uso of 1.8.1

assessment Review KS3 standards and language of assessment in subject padagogy.
1.9.2

Raview SL consistency in use of KS3 and KS4 assessment data

1.8.3
Review AHT consistency In use of KS3 and KS4 assessment data

Intent 1.9.4 .
Subject standardisation of student assessed work across Year 10 and Year 12 work.

-14.-
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1.10 Reading

Intent 1.10.1
Review use of accelerated reader across years 7 and 8

Intent 1.10.2

Review interventions currently in place for students working below reading age and map these using
provision mapper. Where there are gaps in this pravision, conslder appropriate strategies to
encourage reading.

intent 1.10.3
Create a culture of reading for pleasure across the schoo!

Intent 1.10.4
Provide targeted vocabulary
instruction in every subject

1.11 Teachers’ own
speaking, listening &
writing

Intent 1.11.1
Plan TLC on selected aspect(s) of Professional literacy

PRIORITY 2: Behaviour and Attitudes’
11 é‘ry member of staff has hlgh expectatlons of behaviour and conduct ey I
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Intent 2.1
Expectations for
behaviour & conduct

Intent 2.1.1
KS3/KS4: a calm and orderly environment in the school and the classroom, as this Is essential for

students to be able to Isarn

Intent 2.1.2
KS83/KS4: the setting of clear routines and expectations for the behaviour of students across all

aspects of schoo! life, not just In the classroom

Intent 2.1.3
KS3/KS4: a strong facus on attendance and punctuality so that disruption is minimised

Intent 2.1.4
KS3/KS4:; clear and effective behaviour and attendance paliclas with clearly defined consequences
that are applisd consistently and fairly by alt staff.

Intent 2.1.5

KS3/KS4: students’ motivation and positive attitudes to iearning as Important predictors of
attainment; the deve|opmant of positive attitudes can also have a longer-term impact on how
students approach learning tasks in Iater stages of education.

Intent2.1.6
KS3/KS4: A positive and raspectful school culture in which staff know and care about students

Intent 2.1.7 evaluating the school's analysis of, and response to, students’ behaviour over time.

Intent 2.2
Environment (Inc!
dealing with bullying
& discriminatlon)

Intent 2,2.1

an environment in which students feel safe, and in which builying, discrimination and peer-on-peer
abuss — online or offline- are not accepted and are dealt with quickly, consistently and effectively
whenever they occur.

Intent 2.2.2
observing students at break times, lunchtimes, between lessons and, If they are led and managed by’

the school, before- and after-school clubs
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Intent 2.3 intent 2.3.1
Improving beh & att of

students with

particular needs

Intent 2.4 Intent 2.4.1

Students! attitudes to
thelr education

observing students' behaviour in a range of different classes at different times of the day

Intent 2.6 Attendance
& punctuality

Intent 2.6.1
observing students’ punctuality In amiving at schoal and at lessons

Intent 2.56.2

analysing absence and persistent absence rates for all students, and for different groups compared
with national averages for all students; this includes the extant to which low attenders are improving
their attendance over time and whether attendance Is consistently low

Intent 2.6
Use of exclusions

Intent 2.8.1
evaluating the effectiveness of fixed-term and internal exclusions, including the rates and reasons for
excluslon

lntent2.6.2

gathering evidence about the typical behaviour of students wha are not In school during the
inspection, for example whether they have had fixed-term or Internal exclusions In the two years
before inspection

Intent 2.8.3
evaluating the prevalance of parmanant exclusion, the procedures surrounding this and the reasons
far it, and the support given to make sure that it is a last resort

Intent 2.6.4
assessing the schoal's work ta follow up and support fixed-term excluded students

Intent 2.6.5
visiting any off-site unit that the school runs (on its own or In partnership with other schools) for
students whose behaviour Is poor or who have low attendance.

Intent 2.7
Relationshlps among
students and staff,
Incl feelin safe )

Objectlves '

Daya AR ~..va.
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Intent 2.7.1
observing students' respect for, and courtesy and good manners towards, each other and adults,
and thelr pride in themselves and their school

B Acuons lncludlng CPD

intent 3.1.1
l(?l:ea?;:t-:r Students Investigate moral and ethical Issues

development

The Schoal Behaviour Charter statement of intent and the use of sanctions combined with the use of
the peer mentoring and mediation program encourages students to reflect critically on thelr actions
and offer support to students.

Intent 3.2
pastoral support

intent 3.2.1
Students to be aware of student welfare and their support officers
CRIBs, Mental Health Ambassadors, school counssllor and schoal nurse service.
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Intent 3.4
Praparing students
for (ife In modern
Britain

Intent 3.4.1
Understanding and appreclation of the range of different cultures in the school and further afleld as
an essential element of their preparation for life in modem Britain

Intent 3.5.1
Intent 3.6 Understanding and appreclation of the wide range of cultural influences that have shaped their own
Equality of heritage and that of others
opportunity &
diversity
intent 3.6.1
*Acceptance of and engagement with the fundamental British values of democracy, the rule of law,
IndIvidual liberty and mutual respect and tolerancs of those with different faiths and beliefs. Thay will
Intent 3.6 develap and demonstrate skills and attitudes that will allow them to participate fuily in and contribute

Respect for difference

positively to life In modern Britaln
Use of a range of socfal skilis In different contexts, for example working and socialising with other
students, including those from different religious, ethnic and soclo-economic backgrounds

Intent 3.7
Developing
responsible,
respactful, active
citizens

Intent 3.7.1 '
Students galn a sense of soclal responsibllity and respect for members of the community

s

3,

Objectlves

LA b B
Actlons, Includin

4.1 To ensure that
leaders’ and governars
have high expectations
of all students in the
school, and these are
embodied in leaders’
and staff's day-to-day
interactions with
students.

4.1.1 Develop sffective and consistent line management across the school and ensure this leads to
high expectations of students.

4.1.2 To put in place findings of the review of the faculty leadership in the schoa! and the facuity
structure

4.1.3 Devalop effactive and consistent line management across the school and ensure this leads to
high expectations of students

4.1.4 To ensurs there are clear links to governors to support and challenge LT roles and
responsibllitias -

4.1.5 Ensure all stakeholders including governors, are aware of the vision and cors values of the
school.

4.1.6 To develop the mental well-being of students in the school.

4,1.7 To review and clarify roles and responsibllities in SEND arsa
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4.1.8 Review and clarify roles and responsibllities In student welfare area

4.2 As a result of the
work of leaders there
are better outcomes for
studants which are
above expactetions in
terms of progress.

4.2.1 To monitor the progress of Disadvantaged students and ensure that the achlevement gap
closes.

4.2.2 To monitor the progress of Higher Prior Attainers and ensure that outcomes averall are positive
as measured by Progress 8.

4.3 Professional
development for
teachers and steff is
aligned with the
curriculum, and this
develops teachers'
content knowledge and
teaching content
knowledge over time,
s that they are able to
deliver better teaching
for students.

4.3.1 Develop the professional practice of all staff through effective management of the Appraisal
process and its outcomes.

4.3.2 Driving the Implementation of year3 (year 5) of the strategic plan for recruitment and retention.

4.4 Students benefit
from effective teaching
and conslstent
expectations, wherever
they are in the scheol.

4.4.1 To develop the quality of education as defined by teaching and learning to ensure it is
consistently high across the schaool.

4.5 Leadsrs seek to
engage parents and
thelr communlty
thoughtfully and
posttivaly In a way that
supports students'
education.

4.5.1 To devslop the engagement of parents in the schaol beyond merely attending parants’
svening.

4.6 Leaders take into
account the workload
and well-belng of staff,
while also developing
and strengthening the
‘quality of the workforce.

4.6.1 To develop the rale of all leaders in the school go that they take an mare responsibility for
Improving staff welfare

4.7 Leaders' and
managers' have high
ambitions for all
students, Including
thoge wha are harder to
reach. ensures that
practices such as 'off-
rolling' do not take
place and that the
school uses the pupll
premium effectively and
founded on good
evidence.

4.7.1 To monitor the starters and leavers to the school aspecially for students where parents/carers
declare EHE :
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4.7.2 To effectively use pupil premium funding to ensure high ambitions for students

4.8 Safeguarding is
effective.

4.8.1 Ensure that Single Central Register Is reviewed and correct procedures in place for safer
recruitment.

4,8,2 Updating an latest developments In making young people safe.

4.9 Leaders and those
responsible for
governance all
understand their
respsctive roles and
perform these In a way
that enhances the
effectivenass of the
school.

4.9.1 Developing the role of the Gavernor through training and mentoring to ensure that all duties are
discharged effectively taking into account the Nolan principles for ptiblic office.

4.10 The school is
financially viable
maving forward.

4.10.1 For all Ieaders, including Govarners, to be involved In rigorously implementing and monitoring
of the budget cost reduction plan.

4.10.2 Ensure that all leaders are Involved in the monitoring of the budget spend against estimates.

4.10.3 Ensure that all leaders are involved in processes which lead to the setling of the budget for
2019-2020.

Sk

Obhfectives

Ac{ib;l.s;'lncludlné 6PD

Intent 5.1 Relevance
of study programmes
to local & reglonal
needs

Intent 5.1.1

Craata a more ambitious tutor programme for High Prior attainers wha are grouped separately as
well as encouraging scholarship through a minl lacture serles.

Increass use of outside providers an ex student in aspirational roles as part of “Inspire to aspirs.”

Intent 5.1.2

Review KS5 Currlculum in light of school needs whiist belng cost effective.

Intent 6.2

The curriculum Is
coherently planned
and sequenced
towards cumulatively
sufficient knowledge
and skills for futurs
learning and
empioyment.

Intent 5.2,1

To review curriculum map across all subjects including course completion dates and coursework
completion to allow students to be fully prepared for examinations and to identify any pinch polnts

Intent5.2.2

To conslder the devalopment of further links to local employers and to highlight to students the
employment opportunities and links to the subjects they are studying.
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intent 5.3

The school is
ambitious for all its
sixth-form students,
Including those with
SEND and those who
have high needs. This
is reflected in the
curriculum.

The curricuium
remains ambitious
and Is tailored, where
necessary, to meet
individual needs.

Intent 5.3.1

Ta monitor Individual progress of SEND students and disadvantaged students more rigorously
throughout the year and llaising with SEN to ensure staff are aware of students and appropriate
strategles to use

Intent 5.4

The worlk that
teachers give to sixth-
form students is
demanding. It
ensures

that students build
knowledge and
acquire skills,
Improving and
extending

what they already
know and can do.

Intent 5.4.1

Teachers to provide further challenging work for students to do outside of lassons

Intent 6.6

Teachers encourage
students to use
subject-specific,
professtonal and
technical vocabulary
well.

Intent 5.5.1.

Embed PiXl unlock acrass the curriculum

Intent 5.6.2

Embed the wider reading programme.

Intent 6.6

Teaching to
remember long term
with fluency and
Independence

intent 5.6.1

Ald students in developing study skills which embed long term learning

Intent 6.7
Use of assessment

intent 5.7.1

Review collsction of assessment data and how this can be used to better inform intervaention

Intent 5.8
Teaching
etvironment &
r@sources

Intent 56.8.1

Continue to review use of supervised study centre to ensure students are using this resource
effectivaly. Improve use of learning zone for Independsnt study

Intent 5.8.2

Staff set Independent work for studsnts with a focus on preparation tasks or fllpped leaming
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intent 5.9

National tests &
exams meet gov
expectations

Intent 5.8.1

Examination results are improved with a move towards a positive VA for A Level examinations and
grade 3 ALPS

Intent 6.10

Readiness for next
stage

Intent 5.10

Students are given asplirations to achieve high grades in order ta mave onto the top universities or
Higher apprenticaships

Intent 5,11 Intent 5.11
Attendance & Year 13 attendance figures are impraved In line with rest of school.
punctuality
Intent 5.12
Punctuality is closely monitored and persistent late students are monitored
intent 6,12 Intent 5,12
Careers and ° Students are Inspired to pursue challenging careers and take up opportunities to get expenence
employment within chosen fislds and more students gain top university places
information and
guidance

Funds held as custodian trustee on behalf of others

The academy trust Is not acting as custodian for any other external body.

Auditor

In so far as the Governors are aware:
« there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor Is unaware; and
+  the Governors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit Information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The trustees’ report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Governors, as the
company directors, on 09 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by.

Appointed Governor / Chalr of Governors
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Scope of responsibility

As Govarnors we acknowledge we have overall responsibliity for ensuring that Blackfen School for Gitls has an
effactive and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of fallure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Governors has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Head Teacher, as accounting officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financlal management and in
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Blackfen
School for Girls and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of
Governors any material weaknesses or breakdowns In Internal control.

Governance
The Information on govarnance included here supplements that described in the Governors' Report and in the

Statement of Governors' Responsibilities. The Board of Governors has formally met (virtually) 9 times during the year.
Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Governors was as follows:

Governors atended  possible
Mr W Stone (Appointed Govemnor) 7 9
Mrs J Andrews (Appointed Gavernor) 8 9
Mr S J Fitz-Gerald {Appolnted Governor / Chalr of Governors) * 9 9
Mrs G S Townsend (Appointed Govemor / Vice Chalr of Gov)* 7 9
Mr M Brown (Head Teacher & Accounting Officer) * 9 9
Mr T Perrin (Appointed Governar) * ] 9
Miss K Brewaer (Elected Staff Governor) 6 9
Ms J Phelps (Appointed Governor / Vice Chalr of Governors) 9 9
Mr R Shaw (Elected Staff Governor) {(Resigned 01/09/2020) 0 9
Mrs A Dhorajiwala (Appolnted Governar) 8 9
Mr L Thomas (Elected Parent Governor)* (rasigned 10" October 2020) 4] 9
Ms D Moore (Elected Parent Governor) 7 9
Mrs L Ashdown (Appointed Governor) 8 9
Mrs L Twiner (Elected Parent Governor)* 7 9
Mrs L Watkins (Elected Parent Governor) * 8 9
Ms M Yianni (Elected Parent Governor/Chalr of Finance, Audit and Risk 6 9
committes) *

Miss V Smith (Elected Staff Governor) 9 9

Governance reviews

The trust Intends to conduct its next self-evaluation review of governance on the 9th December 2021.
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The Finance, Audit and Risk Committee is a sub-commitiee of the main Governing Body. Its purpose Is to plan and
recommend budget for approval by the Full Gaverning Body. They obtain regular reports from the Responsible Officer,
Business Manager, Finance Manager and the Academy's Auditors, The Finance Audit and Risk Committee has
formally met (virtually) 6 times during the ysar. Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Governors Meetings attended Out of possible
Mr S J Fitz-Gerald (Appointed Governor/Chair of Governors) 6 6
Mrs C S Townsend (Appointed Governor) 3 6
Mr M Brown (Head Teacher & Accounting Officer) 6 6
Mr T Perrin (Appointed Governor) . 6 8
Mr L Thomas (Elected Parent Governor) (Resignad 10" QOctober

2020) 0 6
Mrs L Twiner (Elected Parent Gavernor) 5 6
Mrs L Watkins (Elected Parent Governor) 2 8
Ms M Yianni (Elected Parent Govemnor/Chalr of Finance, Audit and

Risk Committee) 5 . 6

Review of Value for Money

As accounting officer, the Head Teacher has responsibiltly for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value In
the use of public resources, The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and
wider socletal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each
academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of
benchmarking data where available. The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value for
money during the year by:

1. Staffing

As accounting officer, | am aware of the Impact of staffing costs on the budgst. It Is becoming more challenging to
keep this budget within our means. | acknowledge tha significant impact that belng overstaffed can have on the budget
and | aim to ensure that no more than 80% of the budget Is allocated to staffing. We ware succassful in meeting this
alm again for 2020-2021. Welghed up against this is the importance of recruiting a suitably qualified and skilled staff.
Our rigoraus recruitment procssses ensure this happens and we have a clear strategic plan in terms of the recrultment
and retention of high quality teaching staff. A key focus has been to appoint teaching staff in shortage subject areas
and we have a strategic plan for this. We continue to invest in staff and staff training to ensure that staff have future
career opportunities in the school which minimises staff turnover. There has been a particular emphasis on bullding
leadership capacity in the school.

As accounting officer, | am fully aware of the need to be bearing down on costs and | acknowledge that forthcoming
budgsts will continue to be “flat" while costs Increase.. As part of our budget cost reduction plan we will continue to
review how effectively we use staff in the school especlally as there will be cost of living rises for all staff during the
next year, Changes to our staffing structure will reflect this plan. Furthermore, we. deal with vacancies, as they arlse,
by being creative and locking at the position and whether to replace like for like.

2. Student numbers

The school is now reaching capaclty as our S-year plan to increase numbers reaches completion. We continue to
have a waiting list and this is vitally important for us to maintain and increase income to the academy. Recrultment

_In all year groups including the 6th form is very good. All year groups except year 11 have over 220 studants in them.
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3. IT support contract

The outsourcing of the IT support contract continues to provide good value and has saved a significant amount in
staffing costs. A very competitive contract has been put In place for the next 2 years. The IT provision Is a good
Improvement on our previous provision. We continue to ensure that it provides value for money.

4. Energy efficiencles

The new bollers wers Installed as a result of monay recelved through a CIF bid. We are starting to ses the impact of
these on energy conservation and cost saving. Our energy costs are higher than we would like and we appreclate
that these will continue to increase. This is partly due to the contracts that we are tied to. These have been evaluated
and will cease at the end of thelr contract time frame. We have continued to review our existing costs and investigate
how we can be more energy sfficlent. We continue to look at optlons for improved lighting that will ensure that the
school is conserving energy and, in turn, reducing costs. We are also aware of the potentlal increase in costs as a
result of Instalilng mechanical ventilation systems to improve ventilation as part of the response ta Covid-19.

5. Financial processes

The school has a budget cost reduction group led by the Business Manager. This has met to look at processes and
to analyse areas to reduce costs. During the year, through the work of the Business Manager and the Finance
Manager, financial processes within the Academy have been streamiined to Improve productivity and efficlency and
to reduce cost, Our intemal controls ars sound, tendering processes are agreed with the Governors and ars thorough
and finances are regularly monitored by myself and governors. The Business Manager has scrutinised all of our
contracts and selvices. Some services have been renegotiated and this has saved money. We continue to look at
ways to save maney In this area.

6. Catering contract

The catering contract continues to provide good value for the school. The contract has provided improved dining and
catering options’ for staff and students In the school. There has been some capital Investment by-the catering
company. There has been significant Investment in our 6th form cafeteria area. With increased uptake we ars continue
to see the benefits of the contract for the school. The tandering process taok place for a new contract during this year
and the new contract, with the same company, provides a good service to users.

7. Cleaning contract

The Business Manager worked with 8 other schools to tender for a new cleaning contract. The contract agreed has
provided an impraved cleaning provision in the schoal at very little additional cost to the school. The new contraclors
are a blg Improvement on previous years. They have pravided outstanding service during a very difficult period,

8. GDPR

The school has a one-year rolling contract with a GDPR provider in partnership with the other Penhill Academies
Trust schools. This has meant that this Is outsourced rather than being a responsibility, hence a cost, In terms of
salary of a member of staff. It has provided the school with good value for money and opportunities for training in this
area.

9. Lettings

Unfortunately, due {o the clrcumstances, there has been a reduction in income from lettings. This is something that
we continue to evaluate in terms of costs and benefits. The school continues to tet out facilities throughout the week
and at weekends to maximise use and Income. The governing body premises committee assesses the costs of
maintaining the site and opening the site outside narmal business hours. Lettings rates are very competitive in the
local area and we have had to Increase our charges on a stepped basis In order to continue to ensure value for
money.
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10. Collaboration

There are now 5 members of the Penhill Academles Trust. The Trust includes 4 secondary schools and 1 primary
school. We are looking to expand this further during the coming year with a particular focus on more primary partners.
During 2020-2021 there was continued collaborative work. A key aspect of this collaborative working is to share some
costs, hence be more efficient, in terms of potential staffing and purchasing.

11. CIF bids

The school was not successful this year In securing a CIF bid. However, we are looking at priorities and will resubmit
bids next year.

The purpose of the system of Internal control

The system of internal control Is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to ellminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
of effectiveness. The system of Internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise
the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policles, aims and obfectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact shouid they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effactively and economically.
The system of internal control has bean In place in Blackfen School for Glrls for the ysar ended 31 August 2021 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and financlal statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The board of Governors has reviswed the key risks to which the Academy Trust Is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of
Governors is of the view that there Is a formai ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy
Trust's significant risks that has been in piace for the year ended 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of
the annual repart and accounts. This pracess Is regularly reviewed by the board of Governors.

The risk and control framework

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control Is based on a framework of regular management information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability.

In particular it includes:
« comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and petiodic financial reports which
are reviewed and agresd by the Board of Governars;
» ragular reviews by the Finance, Audlt and Risk Committee of reports which indicate financial performance
against the farecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;
setting targets to measurs financlal and other performance;
clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capltal investment) guldelines;
delegation of authority and segregation of dutles;
identification and management of risks.

o @& » o

The govarnors appointed Bayar Hughes & Co Ltd fo undertake a programme of internal scrutiny at the trust. The
Internal scrutiny role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the academy
trust’s financlal systems. Bayar Hughes report to the board of governors, through the finance audit and risk committee
on the operatlon of the systams of control and on the discharge of the board of governors' financlal respansibilities.
Bayar Hughes & Co Ltd visited 3 times during the year. Checks carried out included

Review of risk assessments, policies and certain governance arrangements.
Testing.of Payroll. .

Testing of payments and purchases.

Review of fixed assets and associated records.
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No material control issues have been notified to Governors as a result of the internal scrutiny work. Governors are
satisfled that the role has been delivered effectively by the agent.

Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer the Head Teacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

« the work of the responsible officer,
the work of the external auditor;
the financlal management and governance self-assessment process,
the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibllity for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

.

The accounting officer has been advised of the Implications of the result of their review of the system of internal control
by the finance audit and risk committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of
the system is In place.

Approved by order of the Board of Governors on 09 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

RPN  corTriTe SRR O « S TYTVEP. SO
Mr S J Fitz-Gérald Mr M Brown
Appointed Governor/ Chalr of Governors Accounting Officer
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As accounting officer of Blackfen Schaof for Girls, | have considerad my responsibillty to notify the Academy Trust
Board of Governors and the Education and Skllls Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Academy Trust, under the funding agreement
in place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have
had dus regard to the requiremants of the Acadernies Financlal Handboak 2020.

) confirm that | and the Academy Trust's Board of Governors are able to Identify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

| confirm that no instances of materlal irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to
date. If any instances are Identified after the date of this statemant, these willi be notified to the Board of Governors
and ESFA.

¢

Mr M Brown
Accounting Officer

09 December 2021
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The Governors (who act as trustees for Blackfen School for Girls and are also the directors of Blackfen School for
Girls for the purposes of company law) are rasponsible for preparing the Governors' report and the Financlal
Statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 published by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)
and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Governors to prepare Financial Statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the Governors must not approve the Financial Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including
its Income and expenditure, for that perlod.

In preparing these Financial Statements, the Governors are required to:

e  select suitable accounting policles and then apply them consistently;

. observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2020
to 2021;

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonabie and prudent; '

o state whaether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matellal departures
disclosed and explained in the Financlal Statements; and

. prepare the Financial Statements on the golng concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charltable companv will continue in business.

The Govemors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficlent to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financlal position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the Financial Statements comply with the Companies Act 2008.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Governors are responsible for ensuring that In its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and ather controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are also responsibis for ensuring that grants recelved from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

_ The Govemors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the charitable company’s website. Legisiation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination
of Financlal Statements may differ from legislation In other jurisdictions.

'

Approved by order of the }nembers of the Board of Governors on 09 December 2021 and signed on Its behalf by:

Vi

Mr S J Fitz-Gerald
Chair of Governors
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BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BLACKFEN SCHOOL
FOR GIRLS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Blackfen School for Girls for the year ended 31 August 2021 which
comprise the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and the notes to the
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland’
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the Financial Statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2021 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then
ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2020 to 2021.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Governors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Governors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The Governors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the information included in the annual
report other than the Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the Financial
Statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report,
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the Financia! Statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nathing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BLACKFEN SCHOOL
FOR GIRLS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Governors' Report including the incorporated Strategic Report for the financial
year for which the Financial Statements are prepared is consistent with the Financial Statements; and

- the Governors' report including the incorporated strategic report has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Governors' Report, including the incorporated
Strategic Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires

us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

- the Financial Statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of Governors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Governors

As explained more fully in the statement of Governors' responsibilities, the Governors are responsible for the
preparation of the Financial Statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the Governors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of Financial Statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Governors are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Governors either intend to liquidate the charitable company, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so. ‘

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstalements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

- Enquiry of management and those charged with governance around actual and potential litigation and claims.

- Enquiry of management to identify any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations.

- Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.

- Reviewing internal assurance reports.

- Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.

- Auditing the risk of management override of controls, inciuding through testing journal entries and other
adjustments for appropriateness, and evaluating the business rationale of significant transactions outside the
normal course of business.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BLACKFEN SCHOOL
FOR GIRLS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's Members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable
company's Members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable
company and the charitable company's Members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

David John Walsh FCCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Baxter & Co

Chartered Certified Accountants

Lynwood House

Crofton Road

Orpington

Kent

BR6 8QE

Dated: 14 December 2021
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BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS AND THE EDUCATION AND
SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 15 October 2012 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021, we
have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income
received by Blackfen School for Girls during the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have been applied to
the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Blackfen School for Girls and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement
letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Blackfen School for Girls and ESFA those
matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Blackfen School for Girls and ESFA, for our work, for this
report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Blackfen School for Girls' accounting officer and the reporting accountant
The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Blackfen School for Girls' funding agreement with
the Secretary of State for Education dated 11 July 2011 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1
September 2020, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended
by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance,
and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of
the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in
carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received
during the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament
or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure. The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:
. Review of payments to staff;
Review of payments to suppliers and other third parties;
Review of grant and other income streams;
Review of some key financial control procedures;
Discussions with finance staff;
Consideration of the record maintained by the Accounting Officer of the oversight they have exercised;
Consideration of the programme of internal scrutiny implemented by the Academy Trust in order to comply
with its obligations under 3.1 of the Academies Financial Handbook 2020, issued by the ESFA.
. Consideration of compliance with the ‘musts’ in the Academies Financial Handbook.
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS AND THE EDUCATION AND
SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which

govern them.

Baxter & Co

Independent Reporting Accountants
Chartered Certified Accountants
Lynwood House

Crofton Road

Orpington

Kent

BR6 8QE

Dated: 14 December 2021

-33-



BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
funds General Fixed asset 2021
Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 4 - - 29 29
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational operations 5 41 8,487 - 8,528
Other trading activities 6 11 - - 11
Investments 7 4 - - 4
Total 56 8,487 29 8,572
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:
- Educational operations 9 30 8,531 678 9,239
Total 8 30 8,531 678 9,239
Net income/(expenditure) 26 (44) (649) (667)
Transfers between funds 18 - (14) 14 -
Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains on defined benefit
pension schemes 20 - 10 - 10
Revaluation of fixed assets 13 - - 25,348 25,348
Net movement in funds 26 (48) 24,713 24,691
Reconciliation of fun&s
Total funds brought forward 119 (2,745) 21,329 18,703
Total funds carried forward 145 (2,793) 46,042 43,394

Total
2020
£'000
restated
33

8,313
25

8,371

164

(483)

19,186

18,703
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BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Comparative year information Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total

Year ended 31 August 2020 funds General Fixed asset 2020
Notes £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income and endowments from:

Donations and capltal grants 4 - - 33 33

Charitabie activities:

- Funding for educatlonal operations 5 83 8,230 - 8,313

Other trading activities 6 25 - - 25

Total ’ 108 8,230 33 8,371

Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:

- Educational operations 9 42 8,333 643 9,018
Total 8 42 8,333 643 9,018
Net income/{expenditure) 66 (103) (810) (647)
Transfers between funds 18 (23) ©6) 29 -

Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes

20 - 164 - 164
Net movement in funds 43 55 (581) (483)
Reconciliation of funds .
Total funds brought forward 76 (2.800) 21,910 19,186
Total funds carried forward 119 (2,745) 21,329 18,703
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BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021
2021 2020

Notes £'0300 £000 £'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets " 13 48,047 20,574
Current assets
Debtors 14 155 797
Cash at bank and in hand 786 982

941 1,779

Current liabilitles
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 16 (452) (701)
Net current assets 489 1,078
Total assets less current liabllities 48,536 21,652
Creditors: amounts falling due after more )
than one year 16 . 17 an
Net assets before defined benefit pension
scheme liability 46,519 21,641
Defined benefit pension scheme liabllity 20 (3,125) (2,938)
Total net assets 43,394 18,703
Funds of the Academy Trust:
Restricted funds 18
- Fixed asset funds 46,042 21,329
- Restricted Income funds 332 193
- Pansion reserve (3,125) (2,938)
Total restricted funds 43,249 18,584
Unrestricted income funds 18 145 119

Total funds 43,394 18,703

Crvm——a

)
The Finanglal Statefents Jn pages 34 to 59 ware approved by the Governors and authorlsed for issue on 08
December 2021 and are sig\e on their behalf by:

-

MrS J FleZeejand. e
Chair of Governors

1
v

—

Company Number 07974098
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BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Notes
Cash flows from operating actlvities
Net cash (used In)/provided by operating
activities 21

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from Investments
Capital grants from DfE Group

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long term loan

Net cash provided by/{used in) financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents in the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2021
£'000

615
(803}

£'000

21

(184)

(196)
982

786

2020
£000

1,142
(1,114)

(12)

£'000

331

28

(12)

347
635

082
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BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1

1.1

Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, Is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been .
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financlal Reporting Standard Applicable

In the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charitles: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their Financial Statements in accordance with the

Financial Reporting Standard applicable In the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS

102)), the Academles Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the

Companies Act 2006.

1.2 Going concern

1.3

The Governors assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, le whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the charitable
company to continue as a going concern. The Governors make this assessment in respect of a period of at
least one year from the date of authorisation for Issue of the Financial Statements and have concluded that the
Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and
there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. Thus they
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the Financial Statements.

Income
All Incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is

“‘probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Granis are Included in the Statement of Financial Activitles on a receivable basis. The balance of income
recelved for specific purposes but not expended during the period Is shown in the relevant funds on the balance
sheet. Where income Is recelved In advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not
unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition.is deferred and included In creditors as deferred
income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitiement occurs before income is recelved,
the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the period for which it Is
receivable, and any abatement In respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liabllity.

Capital grants are recognised In full when there Is an unconditional entitiement to the grant. Unspent amounts
of capital grants are reflected in the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are
recognised when there is entittement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

Donations
Donatlons are recognised on a recelvable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where the
recelpt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

Other Incomes, including the hire of facllities, is recognised in the period It is receivable and to the extent the
Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.
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BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.4

1.5

Accounting policies

Donated goods, facilities and setvices

Goods donated for resals are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If it Is practical to assess the fair value at recelpt, it is recognised In stock and ‘Income from other
trading activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock Is charged against ‘income from othar trading activities' and
the proceeds are recognised as 'Incame from other trading activities'. Where It Is impractical to fair value the
items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised In the Financlel Statements until they are
sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities'.

Donated fixed assets

Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value unless it Is impractical to measure this raliably, in which case
the cast of the item to the donor is used. The gain s recognised as iIncome from donations and a corresponding
amount Is included In the appropriate fixed asset category and depreclated over the useful economic life in
accordance with the Academy Trust's accounting policles.

Expenditure :

Expenditure Is recognised once thers Is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer aconomic benefit to a third
party, it is probable that a transfer of economic bensfits wlli be required in ssttlement, and the amount of the
obligation can be measured reliably.

Expsenditure s classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared
costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity
are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs
which are not attributable to a single activily are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges are
allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,

Expenditure on ralsi ds

This includes all expenditure Incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposas and
includas casts of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activitias
These are costs Incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Academy Trust appartioned to charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Assets costing £5,000 or more per item (or less if thay form part of a larger purchase or project where the total
cost exceads £25,000) are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carrled at cast, net of depreciation and
any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are Included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the continued use
of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financiai Activities
and carrled forward in the Balance Sheet. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired / funded by other
income, the fixed asset fund is also credited. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the
restricted fixed assst fund in the Statement of Financial Activities.
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1.6

17

1.8

1.10

Accounting policies

Depreciation Is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to wrlte off the
cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Leasshold land and buildings on a building by building basis, over useful life
Fumiture and equipment 20% Straight Line
Computer equipment 33.33% Straight Line

A raview for Impalrment of a fixed asset is carrled out If events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised In the
Statement of Financlal Activities.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a resuit of a past event, It is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit wiil be required in settiement, and the amount of the settlement can
be estimated rellably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy Trust anticlpates it will pay to
settle the debt or the amount il has received as advanced payments for the goods of services it must provide.

Leased asssts
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a stralght-line baslis over the lease term.

Financial instruments

The Academy Trust anly holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financlal liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement basis are as follows.

Elnancial assets
Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost.
Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrtument and is measured at face value.

Flnancial liabllities
Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.
Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.

Deferred income Is not deemed to be a financial liabllity, as the cash settlement has already taken place and
there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore It meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the
Acadsmy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of Income or capltal gains received within
categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such Income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable
purposes.

Pensions benefits

.. Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are'provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ('TPS')

and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are deflned benefit schemes and the assets and
the liabilities are held separatsly from those of the Academy Trust.
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112

Accounting policies

The-TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calcufated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees' working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially levsl
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary based on quadrennlal valuations using a prospective unit credit method. The TPS s an unfunded muttl-
employer schame with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS [s treated
as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions are recognised in the period to
which they relats.

The LGPS is a funded muiti-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy
Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and iabiliies
are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent
to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities.
The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance shest date. The
amounts charged to net income or expenditure are the current service costs and the costs of scheme
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as
Incurred. Nat Interest on the net defined benefit liabllity/asset is also recognised in the statement of financial
activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the falr value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate
used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference betwaen the interest income on the scheme assets and
the actual return on the scheme assets Is recognised In other recognised gains and losses. Actuarial gains and
losses are recognised Immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
objects of the Academy Trust at the discretlon of the Governors.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created Is held for a speclific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds recelved with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Agency Arrangement :

The Financial Statements of the Academy Trust, which Is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
preparad under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financlal Reporting Standard Applicable
in the UK and Republic of lreland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their Financial Statements In accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS
102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 Issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the
Companies Act 2008.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and Judgements are continually evaluated and are based on hlstorical experience and
other factars, including expsctations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critlcal accounting estimates and assumptions

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions cancerning the future. The rasulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definitlon, seldom equal the related actual resuits. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a materlal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liahillties within the next financial year are discussed below.

-41 -



BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

2

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 20, will Impact the carrying amaunt of the pension liabllity. Furthermore, a roll forward
approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been
used by the actuary in valuing the penslons llabllity at 31 August 2021. Any differences between the figures
derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation woultl Impact on the carrying amount of the
pension liability.

Ciitical areas of judgemen

In preparing these Financial Statements, the Governors have not needed to exercise any subjective judgements
that would be critical to the Academy Trust's Financlal Statements.

General Annual Grant (GAG)

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was subject to limits at 31 August
2021 on the amount of GAG that could be carried forward from one year to the next. An amount equal to 12%
of GAG could be carried forward, of which up to 2% could be used for general recurrent purposes, with any
balance being available for premises/capital purposes,

The Academy Trust has not exceeded these limits during the year ended 31 August 2021.

Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2021 2020

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Capital grants ) . 29 29 33
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Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

DfE / ESFA grants

General annual grant (GAG)
Other DfE / ESFA grants:

- Pupil premium

- Others

Other government grants
Local authority grants
Speclal educational projects

COVID-19 additional funding (DfE / ESFA)
Catch-up premium
Other DfE / ESFA CQOVID-19 funding

COVID-19 additlonal funding (non-DfE /
ESFA)
Other COVID-19 funding

Other funding

Catering Income
Voluntary funds

Other incoming resources

Total funding

Unrestricted Restricted Total
funds funds 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000
- 7,374 7,374
- 205 205
- 514 514
- 8,093 8,093
- 193 193
- 7 7
- 200 200
- 98 98
- 7 7
- 51 51
- 156 156
28 - 28
- 35 35
13 3 16
41 38 79
41 8,487

8,528

Total
2020
£'000
restated
7,170

160
488

7818

o

114
86

200

42

42

42
170
41

253

8,313

Following the reclassification in the Academiss Accounts Direction 2020/21 of some grants received from the
Department for Education and ESFA, the Academy Trust's funding for Universat Infant Free Schaol Meals and
Puplil Premium s no longer reported under the Other DfE group grants heading, but as saparats lines under the

Other DfE/ESFA grants heading. The prior year numbers have been reclassified.

The Academy Trust has been eligible to clalm additional funding In the year from government support schemes
In response to the Coronavirus outbreak. The funding received Is shown above under "COVID-19 additional
funding”. The funding received for coronavirus exceptional support covers catch-up premium, additional
sanitation aquipment/products and additional cleaning costs and the costs of conducting mass testing.. These .
costs are included in notes 8 and 9, below as appropriate.
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Other trading actlvities

Hire of facllities

Investment income

Short term deposits

Expenditure

Academy's educational operations

- Direct costs
- Allocated support costs

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Feas payable to auditor for:
- Audit

- Other services

Operating lease rentals

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Net Interest on defined benefit pension liabitity

Included within expenditure are the following transactions:

Glfts made by the Academy Trust - total

Write-Offs - total

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
11 - 11 25
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2021 2020
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
4 - 4 -
Non-pay expenditure Total Total
Staff costs Premises Other 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
rastated
6,101 543 458 7,102 6,824
972 747 418 2,137 2,084
7,073 1,290 876 9,239 9,018
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
9 9
19 21
41 90
678 643
51 50
2021
£
178
185

Clarification - While the majority of disclosure in these accounts are rounded to £'000, disclosurs of glfts and
write-offs are not. The value of gifts and write-offs for the year are £178 and £185 (and not £178k and £185k).
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9 Charitable activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Direct costs restated
Educational operations 2 7,100 7,102 6,924

Support costs
Educational operations 28 2,109 2,137 2,094
30 9,209 9,239 9,018
Analysis of costs . 2021 2020
£'000 £000
Direct costs : restated
Teaching and educational support staff costs 6,101 5,867
Staff development 6 19
Depreciation 543 514
Technology costs 2 1
Educational supplies and services : : 143 1486
Examination faes 150 143
Educational consultancy 77 68
Other direct costs 80 168
7,102 6,924

Support costs
Support staff costs 826 816
Defined bensfit pension scheme - staff costs (FRS102 adjustment) 148 166
Depreciation 135 129
Technology costs 189 17
Maintenance of premises and equipment 226 202
Cleaning . 146 133
Energy costs 114 121
Rent, rates and other occupancy costs 89 87
Insurance . 37 34
Catering 71 77
Defined benefit pension scheme - finance costs (FRS102 adjustment) 51 50
Other support costs . 79 75
Govsrnance costs 28 33
2,137 2,094
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Staff
Staff costs
Staff costs during the year were:
2021
£'000
Wages and salarles 5,181
Social security costs 475
Pension costs 1,163
Defined benefit pension schema - staff costs (FRS102 adjustment) 146
Staff costs - employees : 6,865
Agency staff costs 108
Staff restructuring costs .
7,073

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Severance payments i -

Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:
2021
Number
Teachers ) 85
Administration and support 66
Management 9
160
Tha number of persons employed, expressed as a full time equivalent, was as follows:
2021
Number
Teachers 79
Administration and support 58
Management . 9
146

2020
£000

4,924
456
1,095
166

6,641
188
22

6,849

22

2020
Number

91
66
g

166

2020
Number
84

59

152

.46 -



P

BLACKFEN SCHOOL FOR GIRLS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

10

11

Staff

Higher paid staff )
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000
was:

2021 2020

Number Number

£60,000 - £70,000 .. 5
£70,001 - £80,000 8 3
£80,001 - £80,000 2 .
£110,001 - £120,000 . 1
£120,001 - £130,000 ’ 1 .

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Governors and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of key management persannsl employee benefits (including
employer pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) recelved by key management
personnel for thelr services to the Academy Trust was £1,046,519 (2020: £1,056,269).

Governors' remuneration and expenses

One or mora of the Governors has been pald remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Academy Trust. The Head Teacher and other Staff Governors only recelve remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of Head Teacher and staff members under thelr contracts of
employment, and not in respect of thelr services as Governors.

The value of Governors' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

Mr M Brown (Head Teacher):
. Remuneration: £120,000 - £125,000 (2020: £115,000 - £120,000)
o Employer's pension contributions: £25,000 - £30,000 (2020: £25,000 - £30,000)

Ms K Brewer (Staff Governor):
. Remuneration; £70,000 - £75,000 (2020: £65,000 - £70,000)
»  Employer's pension contributlons: £15,000 - £20,000 (2020: £15,000 - £20,000)

Mr R Shaw (Staff Governor - resigned 10/09/2020):
¢  Remuneratlon; £nil - £5,000 (2020: £45,000 - £50,000)
«  Employer's pension contributions: £nil - £5,000 (2020: £10,000 - £15,000)

Ms V Smith (Staff Governor - from 26/11/2018):
e  Remuneration; £50,000 - £55,000 (2020: £35,000 - £40,000)
. Employer's pension contributions: £10,000 - £15,000 (2020: £5,000 - £10,000)

During the year, expenses totalling £58 (2020: £25) were reimbursed or paid directly to 1 Governor (2020: 1
Govemnor) In respact of expenses Incurred In performing the duties of employment.

Other related party transactlons Involving the Governors are set out within the related parties note.
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Governors' and officers' insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the Academy Trust has purchased insurance to protect
Govemors and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions accurring whilst on Academy
Trust business. The insurance provides cover up to £2,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the year
ended 31 August 2021 was included within the total insurance cost at £127 (2020: £382).

Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold Furniture Computer Total
land and and equipment
buildings equipment
£000 .E'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 September 2020 25,777 100 108 25,085
Additions 753 14 36 803
Revaluation 19,627 - - 19,627
Disposals (152) - - (152)
At 31 August 2021 46,005 114 144 46,263
Depreciation
At 1 September 2020 5,213 95 103 5,411
Revaluation (5,721) - - (5,721)
On disposals (152) - - (152)
Charge for the year 860 4 14 678
At 31 August 2021 ‘ - 99 117 218
Net book value )
At 31 August 2021 46,005 15 27 46,047
At 31 August 2020 20,564 5 5 20,574

Leasehold Land is included at a nominal valus of £1, reflecting legal restrictions over how the land may be used.

The disposal arises because the construction of a new teaching block invoived the demolition of buildings
previously occupying the site,

On completion of the teaching block project, trustees commlsslonad and adopted a valuation provided by
Ingleton Wood LLP for the School's entire building stock.

The valuation was carrled out on 27 August 2021 and the re-valuation adjustment arising Increased the value
by £25,348k.
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14 Debtors

Trade debtors
VAT recoverable
Prepayments and accrued income

15  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Loans

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
EFA creditors

Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

16  Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Salix loans

Analysis of loans

Wholly repayable within flve years
Less: Included in current liabllities

Amounts Included above

Loan maturity

Debt due in one year or less

Due In mors than one year but not. more than two years
Due in more than two years but not more than five years
Duse In mora than five years

2021
£'000

21

129

165

2021
£'000

143

17
135
153

452

2021
£'000

17

2021
£000

2020
£'000

40

755

797

2020
£'000

122

23
121
431

701

2020
£000

2020
£'000
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17

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

An energy saving Salix loan of £11k was entered into in 2019/2020 as part of a capital project. A further energy

saving Salix loan of £10k was entered Into In 2020/2021 as part of a capital project.

Deferred income

2021
£'000

Deferred income is included within:

Creditors due within ane year 14
Deferred income at 1 September 2020 39
Released from previous years (39)
Resources deferred in the year 14
Deferred income at 31 August 2021 ' 14

2020
£000

39
124 .
(124)
39

39

Deferred income at 31 August 2021 of £14k (2020: £39k) consists of £9k (2020: £8k) of trip income, and £5k

(2020: £31k) of other grant funding.
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Funds

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Pupll premium

Other DfE / ESFA grants
Catch-up premium

Other DfE / ESFA Covid-18
funding

Other govarnment grants
Other Covid-19 funding
Other restricted funds
Penslon reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
inherited on conversion
DfE group capital grants

Capital expenditure from GAG
and other funds

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds

Total funds

Balance at

Gains, Balance at

1 September , . losses and 31 August
2020 income Expenditure transfers 2021
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
138 7,374 (7,390) (14) 108

- 205 (135) - 70

- 514 (514) - -

- 98 4) - 04

- 7 7 - -

- 200 (200) -

- 51 (16) - 35

55 38 (68) - 25
(2,938) - (197) 10 (3,125)
(2,745) 8,487 (8,531) (4) (2,793)
18,626 - - 25,405 44,031
2,897 29 ©®77) 64) 1,885
6 &) 21 26
21,328 29 (678) 25,362 46,042
18,584 8,516 (9.209) 25,358 43,249
119 56 (30) - 145
18,703 8,572 (9,239) 25,358 43,394
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Funds

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
The Restricted General Funds are used to fund the general operating costs of the Academy.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2021. Note 3 confirms that the limit was not exceeded.

The Restricted LGPS Fund represents the Academy's share of the LGPS Pension Fund deficit.

The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund represents investment in fixed assets, net of related depreciation. Unspent
capital grants are also held in this fund and their use is restricted to the caplital projects for which the grant was
paid. The fund also includes a deduction in respect of outstanding government capital loan balance.

Unrestricted Funds represent balances held at period end that can be applied at the discretion of the Governors,
to support any of the Academy's charitable purposes.
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19

Funds

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period Is as follows:

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Pupil premium

Other DfE / ESFA grants
Other government grants
Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer an converslon
DfE group capital grants

Capital expenditure from GAG
and other funds

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds

Total funds

Analysis of net assets between funds

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are

represented by:
Tanglble fixed assets
Current assets

Credltors falling due within one year
Creditors falling due after ane year

Defined benefit pension llability

Total net assets

1 September

Balance at Gains, Balance at
losses and 31 August
2019 Income Expenditure transfers 2020
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
40 7,170 (7,066) (6) 138
- 160 (160) - -
- 488 (488) - -
- 242 (242) - -
48 170 (181) - 55
(2,888) - (216) 164 (2,938)
(2,800) 8,230 (8.333) 158 (2,745)
19,218 - (592) - 18,626
2,710 33 (46) - 2,697
(18) - (5) 29 6
21,910 33 (643) 29 21,329
19,110 8,263 (8,976) 187 18,584
76 108 (42) (23) 119
19,186 8,371 (9,018) 164 18,703
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
£000 £000 £'000 £000
- - 46,047 48,047
145 781 15 941
- (449) (3) (452)
- - (17) 7
- (3,125) - {3,125)
145 (2,793) 48,042 43,394
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Analysis of net assets between funds

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fund balances at 31 August 2020 are
represented by:
Tanglble fixed assets i - - 20,574 20,574
Current assets 119 894 766 1,779
Creditors falling due within one year . (701) - (701)
Creditors falling due after one year - - (11) (11)
Defined benefit pension liabllity - (2.938) - (2,938)
Total net assets 119 (2,745) 21,329 18,703

Pension and similar obligations

The Academy Trusts employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
for non-teaching staff, which Is managed by London Barough of Bexley. Both are multi-employer defined benefit
schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016, and that of the LGPS
related to the perlod ended 31 March 2019,

Contributions amounting to £135k (2020: £121k) were payable o the schemes at 31 August 2021 and are
included within creditors.

Teachers' Penston Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers
have the optian to opt out of the TPS followlng enrolment.

The TPS Is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage
of salary. Thase contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid
by public funds provided by Padlament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial princlples, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published
by HM Treasury every 4 years. The alm of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many
other factars. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation
report was published by the Department for Educatlion on 5 March 2019,
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Pension and similar obligations

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

+ employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer
adminlstration levy)

¢ total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 milllon, and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £188,100 million giving a notional
past service deficit of £22,000 million

« the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, Is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE
rate Is 2.4% above the rate of CPI. The assumed real rate of return Is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2%
In excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth ls assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal
rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023,
The employer's penslon costs pald to the TPS In the perlod amounted to £904k (2020: £856k).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation Is on the Teachers’ Penslons website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS [s an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Academy Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if It were a defined contribution scheme.
The Academy Trust has set out ahove the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held In separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rataes for future years are 25.3% for
employers and a range from 5.5% to 12.5% for employess.

Parliament has agreed, at thé request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantes that, In the event
of Academy Trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabllities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013,

Total contributions made . 2021 2020
£000 £'000

Employer’s contributions 259 239
Employees' contributions 62 59
Total contributions 321 208
Principal actuarial assumptions 2021 2020
% %

Rate of increase in salarles 4,20 3.90
Rate of Increase for pansions in payment/inflation 2.80 2.50
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.70 1.80
Rate of CPI Inflation . . 2,70 240
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Pension and similar obligations

The current mortality assumptions include sufficlent allowance for future |mprovements In mortality rates. The

assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today

- Males

- Females

Retiring In 20 years
- Males

- Females

Scheme liabllities would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows:

Discount rate + 0.1%
Mortality assumption + 1 year
CPI rate +'0.1%

Pay growth + 0.1%

Defined benefit pension scheme net liability
Scheme assets

Scheme obligations

Net liability

The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme

Equities
Government Bonds
Other Bonds
Cash/Liquidity
Property

Other assets

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £628,000 (2020: £158,000).

2021 2020
Years Years
22.5 22.40
252 25.10
241 24.00
27.2 27.10
2021 2020
8,497 7531
8,947 7,807
8,846 7,841
8,689 7,703
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
5,545 4,746
(8,670) (7,684)
(3,125) (2,938)
2021 2020
Falr value Fair value
£'000 £'000
1,682 2,372
771 570
1,031 807
580 47
604 475
887 475
5,645 4,748
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Pension and simiiar obligations

Amount recognlsed in the statement of financial activities 2021
£'000
Current service cost 405
Past service cost -
Interest income . (87)
Interest cost 138
Total operating charge 458

Changes In the present value of defined henefit obligations

At 1 September 2020
Current service cost
Interest cost

Employee contributions
Actuarial loss

Benefits pald

At 31 August 2021

Changes in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assets

At 1 September 2020
Interest income
Actuarial gain
Employer contributions
Employee cantributions
Benefits pald

At 31 August 2021

2020
£'000

387
18

(78)

128

465

2021
£'000

7,684
405
138

62
531
(150)

8,670

2021
£'000

4,748
87
541
259
62
(150)

5,545
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21 Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities

2021 2020

£'000 £'000
Net expenditure for the reporting period (as per the statement of financial
activities) * (667) (647)
Adjusted for:
Capltal grants from DfE and other capital income ) (29) (33)
Investment income receivable 4) -
Defined benefit pension costs less contributions payable 148 168
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 51 50
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 678 643
Decrease/(Increase) in debtors 58 (52)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors (252) 204

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities 21 331

22  Analysis of changes in net funds
1 September  Cash flows 31 August

2020 2021

£'000 £'000 £'000
Cash 982 (196) 788
Loans falling due within one year - 3) (3)
Loans falling due after more than one year (11) 8) (17)

971 (205) 766

enrmeves 00000 emweewm cxzuoe

23  Long-term commitments, including operating leases

At 31 August 2021 the total of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases was:

2021 2020

£'000 £'000

Amounts due within one year 47 37
Amounts due In iwo and five years 77 74
124 111

24 Related party transactions

No related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certaln Governors' remuneration
and expenses already disclosad in note 11. ’
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26

27

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes ta contribute to the assets of the company in the event of
it being wound up whlile he or she is a member, or within one year after he or she ceases to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he or she ceases

to be a member.

Agency arrangements

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for the ESFA. in the accounting

perlod ending 31 August 2021 the trust had unspent bursary funding brought forward of £17,612 (2020:
£22,990), received £17,177 (2020: £22,802) and dishursed £23,491 (2020: £28,280) from the fund. An
administration charge of £nil (2020: £nil) was made leaving an amount of £11,298 (2020: £17,612) included
within creditors: amounts falling due in Jess than one year, ralating to undistributed funds that are repayable to
the ESFA.

Prior year adjustment

Allocation of income and expenditure to appropriate headings was considered fallowing the reclassifications in
the Academies Accounts Direction 2020/2021 and the ESFA chart of accounts. The allocation of income and
expenditure in the prior year has been amended in order for the two years to be comparable. There was no
impact on the reported surplus for the year, reserves at year end or on any balance sheet items.
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